
 

 

CITY OF LOCKPORT 
COMMON COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS 

 
Lockport Municipal Building 

 
Regular Meeting 
Official Record  

 September 24th, 2025 
 5:00 P.M. 
 

Mayor John Lombardi III called the meeting to order. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

The following Common Council members answered the roll call: 
 

Aldermen Fogle, Craig, Lupo, Mullane, Devine, Kirchberger 
 

INVOCATION  
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

Public input will not be held this evening due to the Erie Canal Bicentennial celebration 
being held tonight. 

 
 
092425.1          APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
On motion of Alderman __________________________ seconded by Alderman 
_____________________the minutes of the Regular meeting of September 10th, 2025 are 
hereby approved as printed in the Journal of Proceedings.  Ayes ______. 
 

FROM THE MAYOR 
 

Appointments: 
9/22/2025     Christopher Peacock, 123 Ontario Street, has been appointed to Chief Operator 
of the Waste Water Treatment Plant. Said appointment is provisional and subject to the City of 
Lockport’s Municipal Civil Service Rules and Regulations. 
 
9/22/2025     Adam Heiman, 64 Rogers Avenue, has been appointed to Chief Compost Plant 
Operator of Waste Water Treatment Plant. Said appointment is provisional and subject to the 
City of Lockport’s Municipal Civil Service Rules and Regulations. 
 
FROM THE CITY CLERK 
 
The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the 
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments. 
 
Reviewed by the Finance Committee. 
 
 



 

 

Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials) 
 
Notice of claim 
9/8/2025 Michele Johengen vs. the City of Lockport and Niagara County 
(referred to Corporation Counsel) 
 
MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS 
092425.2 
By Alderman Craig: 
 

Resolved that the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized to issue orders in favor of the 
claimants for payrolls, bills and services to be paid on September 25th, 2025. 
 

Seconded by Alderman _______________________and adopted. Ayes ________. 
 

092425.3   
By Alderman__________________________________: 
     

Whereas by Resolution 041223.16 the Common Council approved the use of two (2) 
30-yard dumpsters at 13 West Main Street during a demolition and construction project 
through the end of November 2023, and 

Whereas the demolition/construction project is not yet complete;  
Now therefore be it 

Resolved that pursuant to its request, REMcNamara General Contracting and Construction 
Management, 8615 Roll Road, Clarence Center, NY 14032 is hereby granted permission to 
place two dumpsters (30-yard dumpsters) in the parking spaces directly in front of 13 West 
Main Street or in the alley to the east of 13 West Main Street whenever possible through the 
end of the project, based on a certificate of occupancy being issued.  Said permission is 
subject to REMcNamara General Contracting and Construction Management filing a certificate 
of insurance with the City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured and follow all 
rules and regulations as set forth in the Lockport City Code Section 156 – Roll-Off Containers 
 
  Seconded by Alderman _________________ and adopted. Ayes___. 

 
092425.4  
By Alderman Craig: 
 

Whereas Hometown Roots has requested approval to host a community outreach event 
on Sunday October 5th, 2025, from 11:00am, until 3:00pm; and 

Whereas in order to accommodate the event, Hometown Roots has requested that 
Charles Street be closed to vehicular traffic between East Avenue and Chestnut, with 
barricades placed by the City at both ends of the closure;  

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Common Council hereby approves the request 
of Hometown Roots to hold its community outreach event on Sunday, October 5th, 2025, from 
11:00am until 3:00pm, and authorizes the temporary closure of Charles Street between East 
Avenue and Chestnut Street; and 

Be it further resolved, that the City of Lockport will provide and set up barricades at 
both ends of Charles Street as requested; and permission is contingent upon organizers filing 
a Certificate of Insurance with the City Clerk. 

 
 Seconded by Alderman _________________ and adopted. Ayes___. 



 

 

 
 

092425.5 
By Alderman____________________________ 
 

Whereas Stand-Up Lockport, a local, non-partisan community group composed of 
residents across the political spectrum, has requested approval to hold a community march in 
the City of Lockport on Sunday, October 5, 2025; and 

Whereas the purpose of the march is to advocate for the protection of Veterans’ 
Benefits, the preservation of law and order, and the promotion of common sense over partisan 
politics; and 

Whereas the march will begin at 12:00 p.m. at the Niagara County Courthouse, proceed 
through the City, and conclude at Veterans Park, with the event scheduled to conclude no later 
than 3:00 p.m.; and 

Whereas the event plan includes: 

 Static displays along the route, with no stopping of the march; 
 Speakers only at the opening (Niagara County Courthouse) and conclusion (Veterans 

Park); 
 Use of small portable public address systems at the Courthouse and Veterans Park 

only; 
 Four trained volunteers certified through an online Crowd Manager Training program to 

assist with crowd management; 
 A small bicycle team in reflective vests to help pace the march and guide participants, 

working in coordination with the Lockport Police Department and Department of Public 
Works to ensure safe traffic flow and pedestrian crossings; and 

Whereas the organizers estimate attendance of up to 500 participants, though actual 
attendance may be smaller; and to safely accommodate participants, it may be necessary to 
temporarily close certain streets along the designated march route under the direction of the 
Lockport Police Department and the Director of Highways and Parks;  

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Common Council hereby approves the request of 
Stand-Up Lockport to hold a community march on Sunday, October 5, 2025, from 12:00 p.m. 
until 3:00 p.m., beginning at the Niagara County Courthouse and concluding at Veterans Park, 
consistent with the event description provided; and that the City of Lockport authorizes the 
temporary closure of streets along the designated march route, as determined necessary by 
the Lockport Police Department and Department of Public Works, to ensure the safety of 
participants and the general public; and 

Be it further resolved, that the organizers shall coordinate with the Lockport Police 
Department, and the Director of Highways and Parks to ensure appropriate planning, safety 
measures, and traffic control during the event; and the organizers shall provide the City of 
Lockport with proof of liability insurance naming the City as an additional insured. 

 Seconded by Alderman _________________ and adopted. Ayes___. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

092425.6 
By Alderman____________________________ 

Whereas Lockport High School has scheduled an evacuation drill to take place on 
Thursday, September 25th, 2025, beginning at 1:00 p.m.; and 

Whereas as part of the drill, students will travel on foot from Lockport High School to 
the Kenan Center between approximately 1:00 p.m. and 1:15 p.m., and will return to Lockport 
High School from the Kenan Center between approximately 1:45 p.m. and 2:00 p.m.; and 

Whereas the School District has requested assistance from the City of Lockport to 
ensure the safety of students and staff during the evacuation drill; and asked, if patrol 
resources are available, to provide traffic control at key intersections along the route, with 
priority given to the following locations: 

 Locust Street at Willow Street 
 Lincoln Avenue at Pine Street 
 Lincoln Avenue at Locust Street; and 

Whereas the School District has also requested that the City provide barricades at these 
intersections, to be placed by the Highway and Parks Department in coordination with the 
Police Department; 

Now therefore be it resolved, that the Common Council hereby approves the request of 
Lockport High School for City assistance during the evacuation drill scheduled for Thursday, 
September 25, 2025, beginning at 1:00 p.m.; and that the Lockport Police Department is 
authorized, subject to availability, to provide traffic control at the identified intersections; and 

Be it further resolved, that the City of Lockport Highway and Parks Department shall 
provide and place barricades at Locust at Willow, Lincoln at Pine, and Lincoln at Locust, in 
coordination with the Police Department, for the duration of the drill. 

Seconded by Alderman _________________ and adopted. Ayes___. 
 
 

092425.7 Being Prepared. 
 
 
092425.8 ADJOURNMENT 
 
At _____pm Alderman Fogle moved the Common Council be adjourned until 6:00pm 
Wednesday, October 8th, 2025. 
  

Seconded by Alderman Devine and adopted. Ayes_____. 
 

EMILY STODDARD 
City Clerk 



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
Lockport Municipal Building

One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

September 22,2025

TO: Common Council

Under and by virtue ofthe authority conferred on me by the charter of the City of
Lockport, New York, I, John Lombardi III, Mayor of said city, do hereby appoint
Christopher Peacock of 123 Ontario Street, Lockport, NY 14094 to Chief Operator of
Waste Water Treatment Plant. This is a provisional position effective September 22,
2025.

Said appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil
Service Rules and Regulations.

Witness by hand and the Seal of the City of Lockport this22"d day of September 2025

cc: C. Peacock
City Clerk



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
Lockport Municipal Building

One Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

September 22,2025

TO: Common Council

Under and by virtue of the authority conferred on me by the charter of the City of
Lockport, New York, I, John Lombardi III, Mayor of said city, do hereby appoint
Adam J. Heiman of 64 Rodgers Avenue, Lockport, NY 14094 to Chief Compost Plant
Operator of Waste Water Treatment Plant. This is a provisional position effective
September 22,2025.

Said appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil
Service Rules and Regulations.

Witness by hand and the Seal ofthe City of Lockport this 22nd day of September 2025.

cc: A. Heiman
C. Peacock

'City Clerk



In the Matter of the Ciaim of
MICHELE JOHENGEN, on behalf of
PHILIP JOHENGEN, deceased,

REcmtirn
s[p 0s ?0?$

CITYCTFRK 
OFFICE

Claimant, NOTICE OFCLAIM

- Against-

CITY OF LOCKPORT and
NIAGARACOUNTY,

Respondents.

TO: CITYOF LOCKpORT, and
NIAGARACOUNTY

PLEASE TAKf, NorIcE, that Michele Johengen, on behalf of philip Johengerl

deceased, has and hereby makes claim against the City of Lockport and Niagara County, and in

support of said claim states the following:

l. The Post Office address of claimant is 6970 Northview Drive, Inckpor! New york 14094.

2' The afiomeys for claimant are Lipsitz Green Scime Cambria LLP, and their post Office

address is 42 Delawme Avenue, Suite lZ0, Buffalo, New york 14202.

3. The claim of Michele Johengen, on behalf of Philip Johengen, is for personal injwies,

including without limitation, medical expenses, and for consequential damages generally.

4. The claim arose at tbe in the intersection of South Transit Sfieet and West Gsnesee Street

located within the City of Lockport, County of Niagara and State of New York. Annexed hereto,

and incorporated herein, is a copy of the June 13. 2025, police report. Specificaily, as noted in the

police report (Attached hereto as Exhibit A), Philip J ohengen was formd "laying in the North bound

traftic lanel of Soutir Transit Street after being struck. Aeriai-view photographs of the location of

Philip Johengen's iqiury producing accidenr are attached hereto:
72.5293811 - 09n37.@07



1 252938v t - 099'1 3 7.Ut07



LAn LtL6gJ- I^8t6ZgiL



5. The claim arbse in substance as follows: On the l3th day of June, 2O25, at approximately

7: 13 pm, Philip Johengen, while crossing South Transit Street, was caused ro be suuck by a motor

vehicle, resulting in serious injuries to Philip Johengen.

6. Upon information and belief, the incident herein described and t}re re.sultant injuries and

damages sustained were caused as a result of the negligence, carelessness, recklessness and/or

unlawful conduct on the part of the agenLs, servants and/or employees of the City of Lockport and

Niagara County, and morc particularly, among other things, in failing and omitting to provide

adequate lighting making it difficulr for drive$ to see pedesfrians; in failing and omitting to

provide adequate traffic conlrol devices; and in failing and omitting to provide a safe method and

means by which pedestrians could safely cross the aforesaid roadwayl and in failing and omitling

to provide appropriate pedestrian walkway accommodations.

7. Upon information and belief, as a result ofthe aforesaid incident, Philip Johengen sustained

severe bodily injuries and was painfully and serious injured; was rendered sick, sore lame and

disabled; sustained pain and suffering and shock to his nerves and nervous system; suffered

conscious pain and suffering; and more particularly, Philip Johengen sustained iqiuries in the

nature of a traumatic brain injury that eventually lead to his death on August I l, 2025.

WHEREFORE, Claimant Michele Johengen, on behalf of Philip Johengen, requests that the

Ciry of Lockport and Niagara County honor and pay the claim on behalf of Philip Johengen.

Dated: Buffalo, Ney York
September p ,2025

725293811 - 099737.0fi)7

Johengen



LIPSITZ GREEN SCIME CAMBRIA tLP

1lt^td,t---"
Thomas M. Mercure, Esq.

Attomeys for Claimant
42 Delaware Avenue, Suite 120
Buffalo, New York 142O2-3924

Q16)849-1333
I ntr'rcu re €\ lf las'.co!1

1252938vt -o9931.ffi7



STAIE OF NEW YORK

COUNTYOFNIAGARA

MICHELE JOHENGEN, being duly swom, deposes and says that she.is the claimant above

named and makes this claim on behalf of PHILIP JOHENGEN; she has read the foregoing notice

of intention to file a claim and knows the cont€nts thereof; the same is tnre to the knowledge of

the claimant oxcept for mattels herein alleged upon information and belief, and as to those ma$e$,

she believes them to be true.

l=/fyut'Utt Q ]a|vW*
Michele Johengen fl d

Sworn to before me this

[t auy ors"piember, 2025

I1r"l/v\^
Notary Public

THOMAS M. MERCURE
Notary Public State ot New york

License No. 02ME5074530

,, .",,?3SJ#EJ[,7F 
',i"I\ 

r,,/'0 L'/

1 252938v 1 - 099737.{Y,nl



EXHIBIT A



Paoe I ot{ P.geB

10

New Yo* $atB Dgpadmern ol hlotoa Vehicles

POLICE ACCIDENT REPORT
MV-104A (6/04)

I 11 42 t3 t{ tE ,16 t?3YA
L
L

I
N

L

E
o

Codsi
25r,P08378

4

1

xzcoMlKG3TCS

rRi DAY 19!13
lriucd

I
KiU.d

0 n
V€HICL€ 1 ?

02
Lic6ft.lD Nunbsr 355{? 0085

sulc ol Lki. ,EH|CLE 2- Orivar
lc€n5! lO Nllrnb€. 860542993 t{Y

X
16 p'irErl oo licren3c itOtiENGEN, PHllIg A

L,avar Nalnl " qac{y
.epdrHoo{c.rs. CRAHFoRD, ROBERT l{

Addr.sr lrndudr NumDcr and SreeD
16. souTr sT APr 9 4015 RD

?

LOCKgOR?
Sht! Ziq CodE
NY l.nqa I,OCKPORT

srai6 ztp cod!
NY 14094

1981 t4
trUI 23 01

Pnrw tJIO 9

ROESRT !t u
I 9 19'7 L

16 PURDY BD

L

1

$rl' ZpC.d.
LOCK!ORT NY

!p co(b
1409{

PED 6 NY 2OO8 JEEP SOBN 32'l

Nr&$i(r)

I

2

failo(a) $nbnitt

ftoru liar 95 inch€3 {/idri

moro lhrn 3a tlll bng;

optraled *ilh en ov|r9ligni plnnit

mol! lhtn io spac6 *9.
rno'r lhln 34 t€ri bngl
op.rrEd wllh ft ov6rr/ciohl parml[ .-><-

*
d L

Mou Oirnror ?
10 &ree lo lhrg ACCIDENT DIAGEANJ|

1 cod6r )
See the last page of the Mv-104A for the
accident diagram.

'ra.$loeRctRFtAG: r7. oEitotrsltEDr!.tilt(tF lt NottallacEri.ovsr'uatED taoIXER

9.

Cott ot rapaiE to ally ont vafidr !vi0 b! ftor. or.n $000.

[] ves fl no

htlud!,Nonhing count NIAGARA

Road on which ar.idd ffiun€d
[] cly I wase I To*n or LOCKPORT

S TRANSIT ST
(Rorrla r'lrfirLr 0r sraer Naft)

LonCibd.,/Ers{ng al 1) irbraoctlitg 6t$ct

or 2l N 5

1

L

2.

Acciltont O.scdpllo.rotff csla no!.s
Patlol did.espond to lhe area of S ?lansit St and I'lain St for a male struck by a vehicle. Upoo
atriva] Pat.rol located, ?hilip Johengen, rho \ias j.aying in the ttoRh bound traf,fic Lane. Joheng€n
waa alert and conscious on scene. IrfD arrived on scene and transported Johenged t0 ECMC fo.
lurther treatmenc. Patrol. spgke lth lhe driver of NY REG JNG2366, Roberi Craefold, Cralrford
stated he was drivirig North 0n S Transit St, lrhen he observed a nale

30

p 7 {3 M 02 05 3 1405 JOIE$68N, P'IIIIP A

2 l 2 t 53 CRA}IFORD, ROBERT }.I

;'lfii'riff"li oencea lt,t-f--^^---- l.{dsr'rono l"""* li$Hff:tl35flo"' f-'l:*:t:"
wo, lorro, I I luun*", 

riro'As 8 t8 y'2025



Pzg6 Z ol 4 P.oei New Yo* Etale Deparlmeni ot Molor Vehicles

POLICE ACCIDENT REPORT
MV-104A (6/04)

I?. (tGMOllSltEO
'll. l,/O OA{AoE
i9. oIXEn

l& Ul,lO€iCAifilAOE
rt lnA{-€i
la. ovERturr{Eo Cosl ot re9.iB lo any ono vehiaL *il b..nrorc than 11000,

Unt oYvlvunlHa lo drdendna Yca [No

L.lilde/No.lhin9

Lon!h,ldc/er6dde

Coonty NTAGARA fJ c'ty fl \.,uaec fl town or

N

E

s

Road o iicir Eccide locaunld

rt l) inler3lclinB ltroel

ota
Ie fi6a!

begih lo step off the sideralk
,nale of the on cohing traffic.
sidted r! r"ras around this ti[le
was not in lh€ croaswal"k as h€

tnto the roadeay. Clar,rford stated he honked his horn, to atert the
!'hen the nale begall to splint furtbet into the roadway. C!:arfo.rd
he struck tbe nale Rith hj.i vehicLe. I.titne6see reported JohenEen
lras attempting to cross S trdnsit St, \lohengen appeared to be
cros9walk. Cra}lfoldrs vehicle did

D€rcipl;ortotke/s not€c

15 feet lrorn the

AlrlE!\iDED RElaQRT

11 17 ,'l la 16 ,t6 t7 BY

Ptlnt I'ltma ln Nrcol,e u TERRANA 101{1
THOMAS 8t?, t2423

?:35

L
L

I
N

o
L

D



PrOt 3 ot ,l Paq6a

to.

New York Slal6 Deparlmonl qf Motor VehlclEs

POLICE ACCIDENT REPORT
MV-104A (6/04)

It It t3 ta ls 1a t? aY

L
L

I
N

o
!

I

25r.P08378
Cod.6

t{,t No€[caRnnGE tt atELoLrSHEo
ts.TiritEn t& llo oaIAG€
lr.ov€fituRrGD |'.ot|{ER

Iatdud€/Northing

LongiuddEa{lng .l 1)jnllr3ccrlng ltr€€l

ot 2'
ld nrle.

Coqntt NIAGARA

Fiturtiluml€l * slia.l {5rirj

fl ory f] vrlasc l: ro'rn d
Rotl on rileh rcejdgni occrred

N

E

Aocd.d Oe5crip{on/Olfice/r nor.

'loe 
require a tot. thotographs lrere tahen, An accideIlt investigEtion uss conpleted

A!,IGEI;A !J TAVIS 5? r{OODrrEts L}t GRAND ISLANo, Ny 14012 i.11 425-i916
RITNESS *1

i'JJ?6ffi oertcsn 1n -t----r,"''-
:ri;'r,{tmth N]coLE M TsRRANA

Br.rgctro No. 
I 
NclG xo. 

lPrtcrnnFot, Eff#*" lR.ll€tl,einc 
arflctr 

lD.lB,Tl|nl 
Ravl61,,.d

I I I IVENNE? THOI,IAS lgl8/:025qr lo:rorl ll lrr::s



Paga 4 ol 4 Pages New york Slale Departmenl of Molor Vohid€s

POLICE ACCIDENT REPORT

@ 
MVr04A (6104)

@
{t

WGENESEE ST

m

m
H

25rP08378

x2col'|lKG3fcs

FR IDAY 19: l3
lnjursd

1 0



3
City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

jdool@lockportny.gov
Tuesday, September 9,2025 9:03 AM
'City Clerk'; '1st Ward'
Resolution for the next meeting please

Good morning. I have included a previous resolution for 13 West Main St. I have also included a couple minor
changes. Please review and place this on the next agenda. lf you have any questions, please let me know.

o4t223.t6-
By Alderman Beakman:

Whereas by Resolution 022223.12 the Common Council approved the use of two (2) 30-yard
dumpsters at L3 West Main Street during a demolition and construction project through the end of April 2023,
and

Whereas the demolition/construction project is not yet complete; now therefore be it
Resolved, that pursuant to its request, Trinity Buildings and Construction Management Corporation, L Jewel
Drive #322, Wilmington, MA 01887 is hereby granted permission to place two dumpsters (3O-yard dumpsters)
in the parking spaces directly in front of 13 West Main Street or in the alley to the east of 13 West Main Street
whenever possible through November 2023. Said permission is subject to Trinity Buildings and Construction
Management Corporation filing a certificate of insurance with the City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as

additional insured and follow all rules and regulations as set forth in the Lockport City Code Section 156 - Roll-
Off Containers

xxxx -
By Alderman Craig:

Whereas by Resolution 041223,16 the Common Council approved the use of two (2) 3O-yard

dumpsters at 13 West Main Street during a demolition and construction project through the end of November
2023, and

Whereas the demolition/construction project is not yet complete; now therefore be it
Resolved, that pursuant to its request, REMcNamara General Contracting and Construction Management,
8615 Roll Road, Clarence Center, NY L4O32 is hereby granted permission to place two dumpsters (30-yard

dumpsters) in the parking spaces directly in front of 13 West Main Street or in the alley to the east of 13 West
Main Street whenever possible through the end of the project, based on a certificate of occupancy being
issued. Said permission is subject to REMcNamara General Contracting and Construction Management filing a

certificate of insurance with the City Clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured and follow all

rules and regulations as set forth in the Lockport City Code Section 156 - Roll-Off Containers

Jason Dool
Chief Building lnspector
716.439.6754



"t

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

AsendaDescription' COmmUnity OUtfeaCh EVent
presentedBy:Jghn Cfaig, Wafd 1 lo","ruornitted:September 16, 2025

Topic Area (Select Most Applicable Option):

Community Event
Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application / Award
Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development

Highways and Parks

Engineering

Code and Planning

Other

Heore prcvjde to cle* dt least 94!3!!!!!!!q! fiot lo couniil meethg. olhe^4rlte rcquesa witt go to totlowingj meeting.

Summary of Resolution:

Hometown Roots is a local beauty shop located at 3 Charles Street on the west side ofthe street across the
Northwest Bank branch. One ofthe owners, Taylor Groff, would like to host a community outreach event on
Sunday, October 5, 2025 featuring products, services and vendors who support this business. The program is
scheduled to take place from 1 1 :00am until 3:00pm that day. She has requested that the street be blocked off
at both East Avenue and Chestnut Street (Grigg Lewis Way) to allow vendors to showcase their products
thereby allowing participants to roam the area freely.

They request the City set up barricades for both ends of the street on Charles (East Ave & Chestnut St.)
lvls. Groff can provide any other details to the City Clerk which have not been adequately shared via this
request form.

Explanation of Attachments:

It is anticipated that Hometown Roots would be required to show liability insurance to the City
Clerk to hold the City not liable for any occurrences during the event time frame. Please
contact the City Clerk to make arrangements to provide a certificate of insurance for this
activity which names the City of Lockport has jointly insured..

Talyor Groff can be reached a1716-266-7264 or by email at: taylorgroffgl @icloud.com

be released publi(elly, please denote a

Notes:

tttame:Jgylgp GfOff lo"t" 
of ncc.ou"t,



RECEI\/ET)
City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

nda Description: October Sth . Close of street

Presented By: Taylor Bedford Hanna willard abbe Date Submitted: 9-1 0-25

Community Event

Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application I Award

Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development

Community Event

Engineering Process

Code and Planning

Other

Topic Area (Select Most Applicable Option):

Please provide to Clerk at least I Sskn!!s!!!ays priot to Council meeting. Otherwise request will go to followlng meeting.

We are looking to close of a portion of Charles street, Lockport ny. Our fellow stylist Hanna
wants to host a grand opening for her bridal trailer. We would need barriers to close off the
section of Charles street. We are located at 3 Charles street. Looking to host right infront of
the salon . We also will have other vendors attending. They will have tables / tents weather
permitting. So far we have 4 vendors attending. Would like to invite a few more just want to
make sure we have appropriate approvals before we ask those vendors. We atl do carry our
own liability insurance. We are open to carrying additional if needed. Our event would be Oct
Sth ( Sunday ) from 11-3 . Thank you so much for taking time to read this and looking forward
to hearing from you.

mmary of Resolution

Explanation of Attachments:

Taylor Bedford - 716-266-7264
Hanna Willard - 716-628-141O
Abbey young -716 -930-0251

backup qorrespondence, purchase order, quot$, meeting minutes, emalls, etc,., lf any of this information is confidential and

be released publically, please denote a check in this field: _
Please

Name: Date of Approval:

L.



5
City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Stand Up Lockport < standu plockport@gmail.com >

Wednesday, September 17, 2025 1:19 PM

cityclerk@ lockpo rtny.gov

IEXTERNAL] lnquiry on Permit Requirements forOctober 5th March

Dear Ms. Stoddard,

My name is Luke Udell, writing on behalf of Stand-Up Lockport, a local, non-partisan community group
made up of Democrats, Republicans, and independents. We're organizing a small march in the City of Lockport
on Sunday, October 512025, and want to ensure we follow all city requirements. The march will start at noon
and be over by 3pm (likely earlier).

Event overview:

. Purpose: To march for protection of Veteran's Benefits, preservation of law and order, and for
"common sensert rather than partisan politics.

. Start at Niagara County Courthouse; conclude at Veterans Park

. Static displays along the route; the group will continue marching rather than stopping

. Speakers at two locations only: Courthouse (opening) and Veterans Park (conclusion)

. Estimated attendance up to 500 people (likely smaller)

. Small portable PA at Courthouse and Veterans Park only

. Crowd management: four volunteers have completed an online Crowd Manager Training course
(https ://www. fi remarshal s. ore/Crowd-Manager-Training)

. We'll also have a small bicycle team in reflective vests to help pace the march and guide participants in
coordination with any directions from LPD/Public Works. We will use sidewalks if the group ends
up being on the small end. If it ends up on the larger side of our estimates, this team would be utilized to
keep traffic flowing and block where necessary for people to cross safely.

Kindly advise on:

1. Whether a special event permit (or other paperwork) is required for a march of this size.
2. Whether sound amplification (portable PA at start/end locations) requires a separate permit or

approval.
3. Any recommended coordination with police, fire, or public works for road safety/traffic management

(including any preferred procedures or contacts).

We're committed to a safe, orderly, and respectful event for participants and the broader community and
appreciate any guidance or forms to ensure full compliance.

Thank you for your time and assistance

Sincerely,
Luke Udell
On behalf of Stand-Up Lockport
standuplockport@gmail. com

1

Personal Cell: (716) 696-2575



Citv Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Ms. Stoddard,

Thank you very much for your quick reply and I love the signature block, this is our year for the Bills!

Regarding next week's Council meeting, could you let me know whether this is an intemal approval or if
someone from our group should be present to answer questions? We're happy to attend if that would be helpful.

On street closures, I've mapped the route in detail and noted the cross-streets where the march would pass. My
hope is to work closely with the city to follow your guidance on what should be offrcially blocked versus where
our bicycle team (in reflective vests) can temporarily guide participants across. We anticipate a modest tumout
(likely well under 500 people), and much ofthe route can probably be contained to sidewalks, but I want to plan
responsibly in case the crowd grows.

To give you a clear picture:

. The march will begin at the Courthouse and end at Veterans Park.

.At each location along the way, we will place simple static displays (e.g., boards with information such
as "Protect Veterans Benefits").

. At the start and end points, we'll provide a port-a-johq and at the end point, a small pop-up tent with
some coolers with water. (This will be contracted to be dropped and picked up same day.)

.I've atiached a short slide deck with the overall concept for context.

My top priority is minimizing disruption while ensuring safety for both participants and the city. To that end,
one ofour members has also reached out to the Police Chief so that coordination can be seamless.

I'll add that I care deeply about doing this the right way. As a retired Army officer and combat veteran myself, I
take safety, order, and respect for our community very seriously. This isn't about partisanship, it's about
common sense, supporting veterans, supporting our community, and coming together peacefully.

And please pass along my thanks to the Mayor, he once fixed my garage door years ago for free, and it's still
working perfectly! I've never forgotten that kindness, and it's a reminder of why I love living here in Lockport.

Thanks again for your help in guiding us through the process. Please let me know what else you'll need from
me so we can make sure everything is in order ahead of the Council meeting.

Sincerely,
Luke Udell
On behalf of Stand-Up Lockport
standuplockpen!@grn4iLqalq

On Wed, Sep 17,2025 at 1:49 PM City Clerk <qlrebrk(@leskperln1i.gev> u'rote:

1

Stand Up Lockport <standuplockport@gmail.com>
Wednesday, September 17, 2025 4:31 PM

City Clerk
Re: [EXTERNAL] lnquiry on Permit Requirements for October 5th March
SUL_March-for_common_sense_concept.pdf



March for 
Common Sense

October 5th, 2025 12-3pm

1

“The cause of America is in a great measure the cause of 
all mankind.”

 Thomas Paine, Common Sense (1776)



Planning Considerations
• Crowd Density (NFPA 101 Line Safety Code)

• Comfortable: 10 sqft/person, allows free movement and personal space
• Tight but safe: 5 sqft/person, typical for rallies, shoulder-to-shoulder
• Max (unsafe): 2.5 sqft/person, emergency egress at risk, avoid this at
• Crowd Manager Requirement: 1 Trained Crowd Manager for every 250 people (https://www.firemarshals.org/Crowd-Manager-Training)

• Walking Speeds
• Avg adult walking speed is 3mph (20 mins/mile)
• Group march of varied ages/mobility: 2 – 2.5 mph is safer
• 2.5 mph pace and 3-4 stops, 1 to 1.5 miles is ideal

• Parking Considerations:
• Courthouse parking lot: 145 spots
• Overflow options: Niagara County Historian lot (56 spots)
• On-street parking
• Must carpool!

• Other Safety / Logistics
• Permit requirements: police coordination for march route and gathering
• Sound system: portable PA system for addressing crowd
• ADA Accessibility: pathways + seating for those with mobility needs
• Restrooms: portable toilets? Probably not as this is short but if so, cost? Permits?
• Safety marshals: will need 8 to get training, 4 to post up at each speaking part, and 4 mobile with the crowd (ideally)
• Emergency Access: clear access for fire/police

• First Aid
• EMS Coverage: 1 BLS Ambulance on standby (notify city)
• Static first aid points at courthouse and veterans park
• 2 volunteer EMTs to walk with the march

• Communications
• Radios between volunteer marshals  to someone in the march (coordinating when to move people along)

• Liability
• Permit usually requires a responsible party, we’re not yet a non-profit so this puts the liability on whoever puts their name on the permit
• Can obtain special event liability insurance, typically $200-500 for small march (< 1000 participants)

Stand Up Lockport 2

# Road Closure Location
1 Niagara St / Courthouse
2 Hawley / Niagara
3 Hawley / Park
4 Main / Transit
5 Transit / Main
6 Alley / Main
7 Saxton / Main
8 Cottage / Main (North)
9 Cottage / Main (South)
10 Pine / Main (North)
11 Pine / Main (South)
12 Market / Main (North)
13 Locust / Main
14 Elm / Main (North)
15 Elm / Main (South)
16 Soc Sec Parking Lot Passthrough
17 Charles / Main (North)
18 Washburn / Main (North)
19 Washburn / Main (South)
20 McCollum / East Ave (North)
21 Cave St / East Ave (South)
22 Montondos Alley / East Ave (North)
23 Spring St / East Ave (North)
24 Carlton Pl / East Ave (South)
25 Adam St / East Ave (North)
26 Pound St / East Ave (South)
27 Vine St / East Ave (North)
28 Vine St / East Ave (South)
29 Howard Ave / East Ave (North)
30 Bewley Pkwy / East Ave (North)
31 Cleveland Ave / East Ave (South)
32 Livingston Pl / East Ave (North)
33 Rogers Ave / East Ave (North)
34 Harrison Ave / East Ave / Summer St



3

Overview

• Total Distance: 1.68 Miles

• Static Displays at Key Locations, Speakers at 
start and end

• Max Capacity (NFPA 101 Standards) Standing 
Zones: 

• Comfortable: ~2,000 participants 
• Tight, but safe: ~3,200

• Max Parking: ~220 spots if county allows use of 
parking lots, overflow to nearby streets

• 34 Roadblocks needed along route

• 2 first aid stations and 1 BLS on standby

Time Activity / Segment

12:00 PM Arrival & parking

12:15 PM Speaker# 1 (Courthouse ) – Opening remarks (~5 min)

12:20–12:30 PM Buffer & crowd prep for march start

12:30–12:40 PM March 0.35 mi to Display # 2 (~10 min at 2 mph)

12:40–12:45 PM Speaker # 2 (City Hall / First Responders) (~5 min)

12:45–12:55 PM March 0.30 mi to Stop #3 (~10 min)

12:55-1:00PM Speaker # 3 (Elections) (~5 min)

1:00-1:05PM March 120 ft to Stop #4 (~5 min)

1:05–1:10 PM Speaker #4 (Newspaper) (~5 min)

1:10–1:15 PM Short 220 ft move to Stop #5

1:15-1:20PM Speaker #5 (Library / Education) (~5 min)

1:20-1:25PM Short move to Stop #6

1:25-1:30PM Speaker #6 (Social Services) (~5 min)

1:30-1:55PM March 0.9 mi to Stop #7 (Veterans Park) (~25 min)

1:55–2:05 PM Speaker # 7 (Veterans & Healthcare) (~10 min finale)

2:05–2:15PM Event conclusion, media/photo ops, safe dispersal

Coordinating Instructions

• Submit Permit to City of Lockport

• 8 volunteers to take crowd management training 
(online)

• 4 marshals for standing zones (they will move to each 
area and post at the 4 corners)

• 4 marshals for the mobile march (2 at front, 2 at rear)

• Volunteers to speak

• Volunteers to create a sign for front of march (and 
hold it)

• Obtain special event insurance

Communications

• Crowd Control:
• Primary: 

• FRS Radios (simply push to talk)
• each of 8 marshals + 2 coordinators
• Range is technically 20-30 miles but 

realistically .5 to 2 miles (good enough for us)
• Alternate: 

• Signal Chat (get all in group prior to group) 
• Contingency: bullhorns (4 mobile marshals)

• Speaking Roles:
• Portable PA System
• Have bullhorn as backup

Medical / Sustainment

• Request BLS on Standby  (will just notify city, no special 
treatment needed)

• 2 volunteer EMTs to walk with group 

• Port-a-potty on start location  - confirm we can place one on 
sites

• Water station at end (small tent with coolers, chairs, etc.)

• Special event insurance

Concept

1. Niagara County Courthouse

2. Locks Plaza (City Hall, Police, Fire)

3. Niagara County Dept of Elections

4. Lockport Union-Sun & Journal

5. Lockport Public Library

6. Dept of Social Services

7. Veterans Park (final stop) with Old 
Lockport Hospital

Speakers will now ONLY speak at the START and 
END (not at the display locations)



4
~100ft

~3
50

ft

~1
00

ft ~200ft

20,000sqft

35,000sqft
Center-point for speaker and static display

Primary Parking Area

Primary Parking Area

Tentative Port-a-john placement



Messages

From: Laura Schuler (LPD) To: Kendra DiTullio; Julie Snyder

Subject: Evacuation drill

Captain,

The High School is having an evacuation drill September 25th at 1300 hours. The school requested that, if available, patrol
could help block traffic during the drill. The following intersections would be a priority: Locust Street south at Willow Street,
Lincoln Ave east on Pine Street, and Lincoln Ave west at Locust Street (which will be very busy with kids crossing and Julie
or I can assist).

The school also asked if we could request streets place baricades at those intersections. Denny Sobrieski andDougHaak
are also available to assist with traffic if baricades are in place further out for westbound on Lincoln Ave at Beattie Ave.

The students will be traveling from Lockport High Schoolto Kenan Center 1300-1315 hours and from Kenan Center to
Lockport High School 1345-1400 hours.

Thank you I

La ura

cc: Officer Snyder

(p

9t181202s Page I of I


	9.24.2025
	Meeting packet for 9.19.2025
	Meeting packet for 9.19.2025
	SUL_March_for_common_sense_concept
	March for Common Sense
	Planning Considerations
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4



